
 
 

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL 
RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
GWŶS I GYFARFOD PWYLLGOR 
 
C Hanagan 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu  
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Y Pafiliynau 
Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian 
Cwm Clydach, CF40 2XX 
 
Dolen gyswllt: Kate Spence - Gwasanaethau Llywodraethol (07747485566) 
 
Bydd cyfarfod o'r PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO yn cael ei gynnal AR Y SAFLE ar 
DYDD MAWRTH, 9FED AWST, 2022 yn unol â'r manylion isod. 

 
AGENDA  

 
DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU – Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol 
gan Gynghorwyr, yn unol â gofynion Côd Ymddygiad y Cyngor. 
    

Noder:  
1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm mae eu 

buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol hwnnw. 
 

    

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu buddiant 
sy'n rhagfarnu, rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan fyddan 
nhw'n gadael. 

 

  
AMSER LLEOLIAD PWRPAS 
 
10:00 
 
 

 
36 HEOL ABER-
RHONDDA, PORTH, 
CF39 0BB 
 

 
CAIS RHIF: 22/0492 Ardal barcio (ôl-
weithredol) a mynediad cwrb isel dros lwybr 
troed cyhoeddus. 
 

 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
 
Cylchrediad: - 
 
Aelodau o’r Pwyllgor Cynllunio a Datblygu: 
 
Cadeirydd ac Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Materion Rheoli Datblygu 
(Y Cynghorydd S Rees a Y Cynghorydd W Lewis) 



 
Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref: Y Cynghorydd R Williams, Y Cynghorydd D Grehan, 
Y Cynghorydd G Hughes, Y Cynghorydd W Owen, Y Cynghorydd D Williams, 
Y Cynghorydd J Bonetto, Y Cynghorydd C Middle, Y Cynghorydd J Smith ac 
Y Cynghorydd L A Tomkinson 
 
Pennaeth Cynllunio 
Pennaeth Datblygu Mawr a Buddsoddi 
Uwch Beiriannydd 
 
Safle 1 
 
Cynghorydd Lleol nad yw'n aelod o'r pwyllgor - Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol Ros 
Davis a Sarah Hickman.  
 



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

21 JULY 2022 
 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR PROSPERITY AND DEVELOPMENT 
 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
Members are asked to determine the planning application outlined below: 
 
APPLICATION NO: 22/0492/10             (AM) 
APPLICANT: Miss R Green 
DEVELOPMENT: Hard standing (retrospective) and dropped down kerb 

access over public footpath. 
LOCATION: 36 ABER-RHONDDA ROAD, PORTH, CF39 0BB 
DATE REGISTERED: 21/05/2022 
ELECTORAL DIVISION: Porth 
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS 
 
REASONS: The application is considered to comply with the relevant policies of 
the Local Development Plan in respect of its visual impact and the impact it has 
upon the amenity and privacy of the neighbouring residential properties and 
highway safety in the vicinity. 
 
REASON APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE 
 
Three or more letters of objection have been received. 
 
APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
Full planning permission is sought for  the retention of a hardstanding and the 
construction of an associated dropped  kerb access over the public footpath at 36 
Aber-Rhondda Road, Porth.  
 
The vehicle hardstand is located to the front of 36 Aber-Rhondda Road and has been 
surfaced in permanent materials and enclosed with a timber fence. It is proposed an 
associated vehicular crossover be provided to the front to allow for access.  
 
SITE APPRAISAL 
 
The application property is a two-storey, traditional terraced dwelling situated within a 
residential area of Porth.  
 
The principal elevation of the property faces east towards the adopted highway, from 
which it is set back by a linear front amenity area measuring approximately 14 meters 

Tudalen 3

Agendwm 1



in length. An enclosed hardstanding has been created here (the subject of this 
application).  
There are similar examples of  hardstandings and dropped kerbs to that proposed 
within the row at nos. 35 and 40 Aber-Rhondda Road.    
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
There are no recent applications on record associated with this site. 
 
PUBLICITY 
 
The application has been advertised by direct notification to neighbouring properties 
and a site notice. 11 Letters of objection and 3 letters of support have been received, 
which raised the following points (summarised): 
 
Objections  
 

• A strain and detrimental effect upon on-street parking and availability. Would 
remove existing on-street parking provision outside of property.  

• Detrimental effect on road safety which would affect children, the elderly and 
people with mobility and health issues as cars would have to cross the footway. 

• Increased probability of road traffic accidents. 
• Would increase parking in the lane off Aber-Rhondda Road.  
• Would set a precedent for more dropped kerbs in the street exacerbating the 

parking / accessibility issues.  
 
Supporting  
 

• This would not adversely affect the area or the residents.  
• Parking is a problem locally and is not isolated to Aber-Rhondda Road. 
• Many households have more than one vehicle and there for off road parking is 

limited. This would allow for additional off road parking.  
 

CONSULTATION 
 
Highways and Transportation  
 
No objection is raised subject to conditions in respect of the dropped kerb construction 
and to prevent surface water discharging onto the public highway.  
 
POLICY CONTEXT 
 
Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan 
 
The current LDP’s lifespan was 2011 to 2021. It has been reviewed and it is in the 
process of being replaced. The Planning (Wales) Act 2015 introduced provisions 

Tudalen 4



specifying the period to which a plan has effect and providing that it shall cease to be 
the LDP at the end of the specified period. These provisions were commenced on 4th 
January 2016 but do not have retrospective effect. Therefore, the provisions do not 
apply to LDPs adopted prior to this date and plans adopted before 4th January 2016 
will remain the LDP for determining planning applications until replaced by a further 
LDP. This was clarified in guidance published by the Minister on 24th September 2020. 
Subsequently, the existing Plan remains the development plan for consideration when 
determining this planning application. 
 
The application site lies within the settlement boundary for Porth. 
 
Policy AW5 – New Development: This policy sets out criteria for new development in 
relation to amenity and accessibility. 
Policy AW6 – Design and Placemaking: This policy requires development to involve 
a high-quality design and to make a positive contribution to placemaking.  
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 
A Design Guide for Householder Development 
 
Access Circulation and Parking  
National Guidance: 
 
In the determination of planning applications regard should also be given to the 
requirements of national planning policy which are not duplicated in the Local 
Development Plan, particularly where national planning policy provides a more up to 
date and comprehensive policy on certain topics. 
 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11) (PPW) sets out the Welsh Government’s (WG) 
current position on planning policy. The document incorporates the objectives of the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act into town and country planning and sets 
out the WG’s policy on planning issues relevant to the determination of planning 
applications. Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 (FW2040) sets out guidance for 
development at both regional and national level within Wales, with the thrust and 
general context also aimed at sustainable development. 
 
It is considered that the proposed development is consistent with the key principles 
and requirements for placemaking set out in PPW; and is consistent with the Well-
being of Future Generations (Wales) Act’s sustainable development principles through 
its contribution towards the Welsh Ministers’ well-being objectives of driving 
sustainable development and building healthier communities and better environments. 
 
Given the minor scale of the proposed development and its relationship with only the 
immediate surrounding area, there are limitations to the extent such a scheme can 
have in promoting planning objectives at a national scale. As such, whilst the scheme 
aligns with the overarching sustainable development aims of FW2040, it is not 

Tudalen 5



considered the policies set out in the document are specifically relevant to this 
application. 
 
Other national policy guidance considered 
 
PPW Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 
PPW Technical Advice Note 18 – Transport 
 
REASONS FOR REACHING THE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that, if 
regard is to be had to the development plan for the purposes of any determination to 
be made under the Planning Acts, the determination must be made in accordance with 
the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Furthermore, applications that are not in accordance with relevant policies in the plan 
should not be allowed, unless material considerations justify the grant of planning 
permission.  
 
Main Issues 
 
Principle of the proposed development 
 
The application relates to the construction of a vehicle hardstanding and associated 
dropped kerb at an existing residential dwelling to allow for off-street parking at the 
property. The principle of development is therefore acceptable subject to the criteria 
set out below. 
 
Impact on Highway Safety  
 
The application has been subject to consultation with the Council’s Highways and 
Transportation Section with a view to assessing the potential impacts of the proposal 
on highway safety. 
 
In their assessment of the scheme Highways and Transportation commented that the 
driveway and dropped kerb are considered to be acceptable in principle. The 
retrospective hardstand has been surfaced in permanent materials which is 
considered acceptable, and they  would provide additional off-street parking which 
reduces on-street parking demand, in the interests of highway and pedestrian safety. 
It is suggested however that a condition be attached to any consent to ensure the 
dropped kerb is constructed to the relevant Council standards. 
Highways and Transportation  also noted that there is some concern that surface water 
run-off from the proposed may discharge onto the highway however it is considered 
this can be overcome  through a suitable condition,  suggested below.  
 

Tudalen 6



Taking the above into account, while the concerns of the objectors are acknowledged,  
the proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of the impact it would have on 
pedestrian and highway safety in the vicinity of the site, and it would therefore comply 
with Policy AW5 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan in this respect. 
 
Impact on the character and appearance of the area 
 
Policy AW5 stipulates that the scale, form, and design of a development should not 
have a detrimental effect on the site or surrounding area. Similarly, Policy AW6 is 
supportive of proposals that are of a high standard of design, reinforce attractive 
qualities, and that are appropriate to the local context. 
The proposed hardstanding and dropped kerb would be accessed off Aber-Rhondda 
Road, where a number of dwellings featuring front amenity areas. The proposed 
development would form a minor alteration to the front of the site which would not be 
too dissimilar to other dropped kerb / driveway developments in the immediate vicinity.  
The development would therefore have a minimal impact upon the street scene as a 
whole and it is not considered that it would have an adverse impact on the character 
and appearance of the area. 
As such, the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of its siting, scale, design, 
and overall visual appearance, in accordance with the relevant policies of the Local 
Development Plan (AW5 and AW6) and Supplementary Planning Guidance.  
  
Impact on residential amenity and privacy 
 
The proposal would result in the kerb to the front of the site being dropped to facilitate 
off-street car parking on an existing hard standing. The development would therefore 
not be capable of causing any overshadowing or detriment to outlook, nor would it 
raise any concerns with regard to privacy. As such, the proposal is considered to be 
acceptable in terms of the impact it would have on the residential amenity and privacy 
of neighbouring properties. 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Liability 
 
The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was introduced in Rhondda Cynon Taf from 
31 December 2014. 
 
The application is for development of a kind that is not CIL liable under the CIL 
Regulations 2010 (as amended). 
 
Conclusion 
 
It is considered the proposal would not have a significant impact on the character and 
appearance of the locality, upon the residential amenity of the surrounding 
neighbouring properties, or upon highway safety. The application is therefore 
considered to comply with the relevant policies of the Local Development Plan (AW5 
and AW6). 

Tudalen 7



 
RECOMMENDATION:  GRANT SUBJECT TO THE BELOW CONDITIONS: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 

five years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason:  To comply with Sections 91 and 93 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 
 

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved plan(s)  
 
• Site location plan 
• Hardstand plan 
 
unless otherwise to be approved and superseded by details required by any 
other condition attached to this consent. 
 
Reason:  To ensure compliance with the approved plans and documents 
and to clearly define the scope of the permission. 
 

3. Notwithstanding the details shown on the submitted plans, no further 
development shall commence until design and details of the vehicular 
crossover have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved details shall be implemented on site prior 
to beneficial use.  
 
Reason: In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety, in accordance with 
Policy AW5 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan. 
 

4. Surface water run-off from the proposed development shall not discharge 
onto the public highway or be connected to any highway drainage system 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to prevent overcapacity of the 
existing highway drainage system and potential flooding, in accordance with 
Policy AW5 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan. 
 

5.  Within a period of four months, the gates in front of the hardstanding, as 
outlined in the submitted plans, are to be reduced to match the existing brick 
wall boundary treatment. Thereafter, the scheme shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with policies AW5 
and AW6 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan. 

 

Tudalen 8


	Agenda
	GWŶS I GYFARFOD PWYLLGOR

	1 36 HEOL ABER-RHONDDA, PORTH, CF39 0BB

